MINUTES OF PHILLIPS BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING Monday, March 21, 2022

- I. The Phillips Board of Education regular meeting was called to order by President Pesko at 6:00 p.m. in the Phillips High School Auditorium.
- II. <u>Present</u>: Baxter, Fox, Houdek, Krog, Pesko, Rose, Van De Voort, Willett and Student Liaison. <u>Absent</u>: Halmstad
- III. <u>Administration present</u>: Superintendent Morgan, Business Manager Lehman, and Principals Hoogland and Scholz. <u>Others</u>: Staff and community members. The meeting was available via Zoom for online attendance.
- IV. President Pesko stated that public notice of the meeting was properly posted according to Wisconsin Statute 19.84(4). Notice was posted at all school-owned buildings, the School District of Phillips' website, and the Price County Review.
- V. Public Participation
 - A. Marc Peterson reported that five Phillips High School students will be joined with five Butternut High School students for the Northwoods Youth for Global Ecology trip to Costa Rica from March 22 through April 1.
 - B. Mike Eggebrecht reported that the Phillips High School girls basketball team were awarded Academic All-State Team Award with a cumulative GPA of 3.967 for the top ten varsity players by minutes played. They ranked second in the state in Division 4.
 - C. Karl Pippenger reported that Northwoods Players has exceeded their goal of \$125,000. Any excess funds will continue to be used in the auditorium project. He thanked the Board for their support.
- VI. Administrative and Committee Reports
 - A. Dave Scholz, Elementary Principal
 - 1. Principal Scholz shared with the board a listing of comments from parents following the student-led conferences, as well as suggestions for improvement, and what was learned about their child. There was a 90% attendance of parents at the conferences.
 - 2. The elementary has been able to rearrange rooms in the new elementary to accommodate a third 4K classroom. This is needed due to Head Start no longer providing a 4K program.
 - B. Colin Hoogland, 6-12 Campus Principal
 - 1 Mara Mulligan, daughter of Brenda Mulligan and Shannon Towns, is the recipient of the Technical Excellence Scholarship for 2022. Mara plans to attend Fox Valley Technical College for an event management degree.
 - 2. Jensen Weik, daughter of Jason and NIcole Weik, is the recipient of the Academic Excellence Scholarship for 2022. Jensen will attend UW-Madison to study biomedical engineering..
 - 3. The cross country team is requesting permission for an out-of-state trip to the University of MN-Minneapolis meet on September 23rd.

- C. Vicki Lemke, Pupil Services Director was unable to attend. Rick Morgan presented the 66.03.01 RVA Soar Consortium contract to meet the needs of our 18-21 year old special needs students. There is an annual fee of \$7,500.00 as a consortium member and \$16,822 per student cost. This contract will be reviewed annually.
- D. Rick Morgan Superintendent Report
 - 1. During closed session there will be a review of candidates for the administrative positions and dates set for the first round of interviews. If a second round is needed, it will be scheduled prior to the April 25th board meeting.
 - 2. Superintendent Morgan asked for board input on meeting with area daycare providers to discuss interest in an early learning center in the Grades 4 and 5 wing in the old elementary school.
 - 3. Superintendent Morgan presented a certificate to Paula Houdek for reaching a point goal in the WASB Member Recognition Program. He also recognized Stephen Willett for service on the Board. Stephen is not seeking reelection in the Spring Election.
- E. Student Liaison Morrone
 - 1. Reported on the spring sport start dates. Three students are going to Nationals in PowerLifting on Thursday. FBLA will be going to the State competition next week.
 - 2. The Student Council held a blood drive which was well attended.
 - 3. The juniors and seniors are working on the prom.
 - 4. There is a band/choir concert on March 31st, Students are looking forward to no school on Friday.
 - 5. Students of the month at PhMS were Austin Curler (6), Bridget Wright (7), and Sawyer Kucaba (8).
- F. Policy committee met on March 16, 2022 and discussed:
 - 1. #166 Board Member Use of Electronic Mail and recommend no change. The committee will continue to discuss use of electronic devices during board meetings.
 - 2. Board members have been assigned school specific email addresses, which will be exclusively used starting with the April board meetings.
 - 3. #523.1 Employee Physical Exams policy is forwarded for first reading. Recommendation is to delete the 10-year physical exam requirement.
 - 4. Recommendation is to not change or modify any Series 200 evaluations until future change in administration is completed as job descriptions changes may be needed.
 - 5. Items for future meetings include review of all ethics policies, and administering of medication.
- G. Facilities and transportation committee met on March 17, 2022 and discussed:
 - 1. Facility items included a report on inspections, quotes for the lawn mower and middle school pump replacement, pool impeller installation, and air conditioning quotes still needed.
 - 2. Transportation items included issues with a car exiting bus drop off area, first season snow removal review, deer hitting a bus, new van signage being completed, holding off on filling the diesel tank until fall, quotes and recommendation on purchase of new propane bus, bus exhaust system upgrades coming for older buses and bus parking.

- 3. The pool walkthrough highlighted the need for new lockers and tile/grout and mop edging work needing to be done.
- H. Business services committee met on March 13 and discussed:
 - 1. Construction update on Phase III with a projected completion date in the next two weeks. Phase IV work on the new IMC and filling in of the old choir room is going well and on schedule.
 - 2. Work is going ahead with the vacancies for 2022-2023.
 - 3. Reviewed quotes for replacing old pool lockers.
 - 4. CPI is at four percent and administrative recommendation is to continue with a 1.5% increase on base for all employees.
 - 5. ESSER funds can be used for remedial summer school courses to help bridge the academic gap. Teachers will receive an increased hourly rate for these courses.
 - 6. RVA Soar Consortium contract being proposed for 18-21 year old special education students.
 - 7. Auditorium upgrade project recommendations from the vendor were reviewed.
 - 8. Bills will be reviewed before Monday's board meeting.
- VII. Items for Discussion and Possible Action
 - A. Motion (Krog/Houdek) motion to continue with Return to Learn Plan A per administrative recommendation. Motion carried 8-0.
 - B Superintendent Morgan reviewed the Miron Owner report for this month focusing on the new elementary school office and Phase IV work. All project work and cleaning should be completed by the second week in May. The project is ahead of schedule and under budget.
 - C. No changes to the 2022-2023 staffing plan.
 - D. No update to the public relations position at this time.
 - E. There are no changes to the CESA #12 contract other than percentage increase. CESA #12 district administrator will be here in April to present the contract and answer questions.
 - F. Hailey Halmstad, Paula Houdek, and Anne Baxter volunteered to distribute diplomas at the graduation ceremony.
 - G Motion (Willett/Krog) to approve 66.03.01 Consortium Contract Agreement for RVA Soar Program for 18-21 Year Olds for 2022-2023. Motion carried 8-0.
 - H. Motion (Baxter/Houdek) to approve an out-of-state trip for cross country to attend UM-Minneapolis on September 23, 2022. Motion carried 8-0.
 - I. Motion (Krog/Baxter) to approve purchase of pool lockers for \$25,718.0 from Fund 80. Motion carried 8-0.
 - J. Recommendations from auditorium refresh vendor were reviewed and board action will not be needed. Motion carried 8-0.
 - Motion (Willett/Krog) to approve purchase of Blue Bird propane bus for \$116,295.00 from 2022-2023 budget. Motion carried 8-0.
 - L. Motion P(Willett/Krog) to approve purchase of Grasshopper mower for \$11,500 from 2022-2023 budget. Motion carried 8-0.
 - M. Motion (Willett/Rose) to approve purchase of pump replacement in the middle school for \$17,943 from 2022-2023 budget. Motion carried 8-0.

- VIII. Consent Items Motion (Willett/Rose) to approve the following consent items. Motion carried 8-0.
 - A. Minutes from February 21, 2022 Board Meeting.
 - B. Personnel report No hiring or resignations this month, only recruitment.
 - C. Approve bills from February 2022 (#349725-349847 and wires) for a total of \$1,232,981.41.
- IX. The next regular board meeting will be held on April 25, 2022 with a Board tour of new elementary remodel at 5:30 p.m.
- X. Motion (Willett/Rose) Motion to convene into executive session at the conclusion of the open session pursuant to: WI Stat. Sec. 19.85(1)(c) for the purpose of considering employment, promotion, retirement, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. Motion carried 8-0 with roll call vote at 7:08 p.m.
 - Compensation for Current and Vacant Positions
 - Review of Retirement Agreement Request
 - Review Administration Vacancy Candidates and Set Meeting Dates for Interview Scheduling
- XI. Motion (Krog/Willett) to reconvene into open session pursuant to WI Stat. Sec. 19.85(1), if necessary, to act on motions made during the executive session. Motion carried 8-0 with roll call vote at 8:41 p.m.
- XII. Action Items
 - A. Motion (Willett/Krog) to make no changes to the retirement request, the Board will follow the Employee Handbook as written. Motion carried 6-2 (Baxter/Houdek)
 - B. Motion (Willett/Krog) to increase summer school teacher pay to \$25.00 per hour. Motion carried 8-0.
- XIII. Motion (Willett/Krog) to adjourn. Motion carried 8-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:43 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Anne Baxter, Clerk Board of Education

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILLIPS

Price County Review P.O. Box 170 Phillips, Wisconsin 54555

APPROVED FOR PUBLICATION

Minutes of School Board Meeting March 21, 2022 6:00 PM

Anne Baxter, Clerk Board of Education